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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,

The Members,

Iserveu Technology Private Limited
U729000R2016PTC025851

Your Director’s have immense pleasure in presenting their 07 Annual Report on the business and operations
of the Company along with Audited annual accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023.

1. Financial Performance of the Company

Financial Results
(Amount in X lakhs)

Particulars For the Year Ended For year ended
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Total Income 8,868.91 8,065.38
Total Expenditure 11,035.67 8,036.67
Profit before Tax (2,166.76) 28.71

Less: Provision for Tax

Current Tax - 46.67
Deferred Tax (asset)/ liability 48.42 (36.82)
Net Profit after Tax (2,215.18) 18.86
EPS (Basic) (950.99) 8.71

EPS (Diluted) (950.99) 8.71

Performance

During the year, your company recorded a Total Income of Rs. 88,68,91,000 from Rs. 80,65,38,000 in previous
year, a rise of 9.06% as compared to the previous year. The Loss before Tax stood at Rs. (21,66,76,000) from
Rs. 28,71,000/- in previous year, and Loss after tax stood at Rs. (22,15,18,000) from Rs. 18,86,000/- in previous
year.

2. Covid-19 pandemic

The COVID-19 pandemic has emerged as a global challenge, creating disruption across the world forcing
governments to enforce lock-downs of all economic activity. The physical and emotional wellbeing of employees
continues to be our top priority along with minimizing disruption of services for all our customers. The Company
effectively responded to this pandemic situation and ensured that the business was not affected and operations
of the Company were carried out while handling the crisis situation. Several initiatives were rolled out to make
teams and managers effective while working from different locations.

The Company is actively seeking new opportunities and is continuously striving to navigate all the challenges
that it would face.
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3. State of Companies Affairs

The Company is focused on its vision and committed to fulfilling its mission through ensuring consistent delivery
of quality products, unsurpassed service and premium value to its esteemed customers. It also aims to work
diligently as a team with high standards of integrity, as well as emerge as a winner in the marketplace in all
aspects of its business. Further details are mentioned in the Financials of the Company.

4, Key Business Developments

Transformative digital banking trends for 2023

Year 2023 is expected to witness increasing acceptance of advanced technologies like Artificial Intelligence
(AI) and Machine Learning (ML) that will help banks deal with their clients easier than ever. Digitization in the
banking sector has led to a new wave of competition among traditional banking service providers. Traditional
banks are facing unprecedented challenges from non-bank competitors and Fintechs. Digital payments are
expected to grow rapidly in the next few years and by 2025, 71.7% share of all payments in India is expected
to be digital.

Capitalizing on the digital payments wave

The demand for cashless and contactless transactions will keep on surging. The banking sector as a whole is
preparing itself to invest and adopt new technologies to facilitate more digital payment. 2023 will allow banks
to shift to fully digitized services with the adoption of digital banking tools. To deal with the changing pattern
of customers’ behaviour, banks must ensure that the solutions provided to customers are convenient, easy to
use, and engaging. Besides, the growth of online transactions digitally will initiate quick payment options that
can be availed from anywhere and everywhere.

Year 2022-23 for iServeU

Year 2023 has been so far spectacular for iServeU in terms of new business avenues and client acquisition. As
the only full stack financial platform provider in India, we have been able to channelize the opportunities there.
The growth in business of our key clients in the NBFC sector has accelerated our growth. Strong relationship
and client management has enabled us to generate more business via newer business channels from our
existing clients, thus adding more to the top line while strengthening the bottom-line in FY2022-23.

ASP to NPCI: During the last financial year, iServeU joined NPCI as a registered Application Service Provider
(ASP), adding another flag to the credibility thereon.

Client Acquisition: We have successfully added three large PSU banks to our clientele while more than 20
Fintechs have been onboarded to our platform. We believe the association with the PSU banks will open the
doors for more business and new opportunities in the areas of Digital Banking, Issuance and Payments in the
coming times.

5. Holding, Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies

Pursuant to the definitive agreements entered into by the Company with Niyogin Fintech Limited, it has become
a subsidiary of Niyogin Fintech Limited as per applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 w.e.f. December
18, 2020 and Niyogin Fintech Limited holds 51.00% equity share capital and voting rights in the Company.
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6. Changes in the capital structure

During the year 2022-23, there were no changes in the capital structure.

7. Dividend
Your Director’s do not recommend any dividend for the financial year 2022-23.

8. Meetings

During the year under review, six (6) Board Meetings were convened and held on May 10, 2022, July 27, 2022,
September 08, 2022, November 08, 2022, February 11, 2023 and March 20, 2023.

The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

9. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

As on March 31, 2023, the Company’s Board consists of the following Directors:

Mr. Amit Tyagi - Director

Mr. Debiprasad Sarangi - Director

Mr. Amit Vijay Rajpal — Non-Executive Chairman

Mr. Tashwinder Harjap Singh — Non-Executive Director
Ms. Subhasri Sriram — Independent Director

Mr. Abhishek Thakkar — Additional Director

VVYVYYVYYVY

During the year 2022-23, Mr. Raghvendra Somani ceased to be the Director of the Company with effect from
November 09, 2022; and Mr. Abhishek Thakkar was appointed as Additional Director of the Company with
effect from February 14, 2023.

10. Declaration by Independent Directors

Ms. Subhasri Sriram has confirmed compliance with the provisions of rule 6 of Companies (Appointment and
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, relating to inclusion of her name in the databank of
independent directors. She has also submitted a declaration of independence, as required under section 149(7)
of the Act, stating that she meets the criteria of independence as provided in section 149(6) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

11. Director retiring by rotation

In accordance with Section 152(6)(d) of Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Amit Tyagi (DIN: 08317195) retires by
rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
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12. Annual Return

A copy of the annual return as provided under section 92(3) of the Act, in the prescribed form, which will be
filed with the Registrar of Companies/MCA, is placed on Company’s website www.iserveu.in.

13. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

During the year under review, the Company has not provided any guarantees covered under section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

14. Particulars of Contract and Arrangements made with Related Parties

With reference to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013, all contracts and arrangements with related
parties under Section 188(1) of the Act, entered by the Company during the financial year, were in the ordinary
course of business and on arm’s length basis. During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract
or arrangement with related parties which could be considered as ‘material’ (i.e., transactions which were
required to be placed before the members of the Company) according to the policy of the Company on
materiality of Related Party Transactions. None of the Directors had any pecuniary relationships or transactions
vis-a-vis the Company. Since all the Related Party Transactions entered into by the Company were in the
ordinary course of business and were on an arm’s length basis, hence Form AOC-2 is not applicable to the
Company.

15. Public Deposits
In terms of the provisions of Sections 73 of the Act read with the relevant Rules of the Act, the Company had

no opening or closing balances and also has not accepted any deposits during the year under review and as
such, no amount of principal or interest was outstanding as on March 31, 2023.

16. Transferred to any Reserves

During the period under review, it is not proposed to carry any amount to any reserves. Hence, disclosure
under Section 134(3)(j) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not required.

17. Maintenance of Cost Records

The Company is not required to maintain any cost records as specified by the Central Government under Sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

18. Human Resource Management

The Company recognizes human resources to be the most valuable asset of the Company. People development
continues to be a key focus area at iServeU. The Company continues to pay a focused attention on the
development of human relations within the organization. The Company believes in building a culture of
innovation and creativity where our employees are inspired to achieve excellence in their area of functioning.

The Company is ensuring the best place to work to attract and retain good employees in the Company.

The Company continued to strive towards attracting, retaining, training, and multi-skilling employees. With
the increase in workforce due to expansion in business, envisaging the requirement of adequate on the job
training across the various levels of employees.
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19. Risk Management

A well-defined risk management mechanism covering the risk — management and trend analysis, risk exposure,
potential impact and risk mitigation process is in place. The objective of the mechanism is to minimize the
impact of risks identified and take advance actions to mitigate it though the various risks associated with the
business cannot be eliminated completely, all efforts are made to minimize the impact of such risks on the
operations of the Company.

20. Sexual Harassment Policy

The Company has adopted a Policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of sexual harassment at workplace
in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules there under for prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment
at work place. The Company has not received any complaint on sexual harassment during the year under
review.

21. Corporate Social Responsibility

In terms of the Section 135(5) of Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not fulfilling the criteria of having
average net profit for immediate three preceding financial years. Accordingly, the Company is not required to
spend any amount in the CSR activities during the financial year.

22, Audit Committee

Presently, the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 6 of the Companies
(Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company.

23. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Being in the service sector, the particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption as required
to be disclosed under the Act are not applicable to the Company. The Company has not earned any amount in
terms of foreign Exchange.

24, Significant & material orders passed by the regulators or courts
There are no material litigations outstanding as on March 31, 2023.

25, Revision _in_Financial Statements or Board’s Report under section 131(1) of the

Companies Act, 2013

In terms of Section 131 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Financial Statements and Board’s Report are in
compliance with the provisions of Section 129 or Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and that no revision
has been made during any of the three preceding financial years.
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26. Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls in Relation to Financial Statements

The Company has documented its internal financial controls considering the essential components of various
critical processes, both physical and operational. This includes its design, implementation and maintenance
along with periodic internal review of operational effectiveness and sustenance, and whether these are
commensurate with the nature of its business and the size and complexity of its operations. This ensures orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, safeguarding of its assets,
prevention of errors, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, the timely preparation of reliable
financial information and prevention and detection of frauds and errors. Internal financial controls with
reference to the financial statements were adequate and operating effectively.

27. Other disclosure under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013

Except as disclosed elsewhere in the report, there have been no material changes and commitments, which
can affect the financial position of the Company between the end of the financial year and the date of report.

The Board of Directors informs the member that during the financial year there has been no material changes,
except as disclosed elsewhere in the report:

° In the nature of Company’s business.
° Generally, in the classes of business in which the Company has interest.

28. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirement clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, your
Directors confirm that:

a. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b. The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period;

c. The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e. The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

29, Remuneration Policy

None of the employees including managerial personnel draws in excess of the limits prescribed under section
197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Remuneration) Rules, 2014 which needs to be disclosed in the Director’s Report.

30. Statutory Auditor

M/s. Rawat & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Firm Registration No 134109W, had been appointed as the
Statutory Auditors for a period of five (5) years at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on July 27,
2022 till the conclusion of the 11* Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in FY 2026-27. In terms
of the first proviso to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the appointment of the Auditors needs to be
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placed for ratification at every subsequent Annual General Meeting since their first appointment. However,
pursuant to the notification dated 07th May, 2018 of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, the said
appointment is not required to be ratified every year so long as the Auditors are eligible & qualified to be
appointed. In this regard, the Company has received a communication from the Statutory Auditors to the effect
that their appointment is in accordance with the provisions of Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013, and
hence their appointment is not required to be ratified.

31. Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to regulation 24A of SEBI (LODR), 2015 every listed entity and its material unlisted subsidiaries
incorporated in India shall undertake secretarial audit and shall annex with its annual report, a secretarial audit
report, given by a company secretary in practice, in such form as may be prescribed with effect from the year
ended March 31, 2019. Since Iserveu Technology Private Limited is the material subsidiary of Niyogin Fintech
Limited the said regulations were applicable for the FY 2022-23.

The Board at its meeting held on February 11, 2023 had appointed M/s Saroj Ray and Associates, Practising
Company Secretaries, holding Peer Review Certificate No. 976/2020, to undertake the Secretarial Audit for the
Financial Year Ended March 31, 2023.

The Secretarial Audit Report in form MR-3 for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 is annexed as
‘Annexure-A’ to this Director’s Report.

32. Auditor’'s Report

The Statutory Auditors have expressed their Emphasis of Matter (EOM) on the Standalone financial statements
of the Company on the below matters:

Reference is drawn to Note No 42(b) to the Financial Satementsin respect of tradereceivables. Due to
non-implementation of ECL policy, consequential impact on provisioning of debtors on the Financial
Satements, if any, cannot be quantified.

Reference is drawn to Note No 45 to the Financial Statements in respect of bank reconciliation.
One of the bank accounts is not reconciled due to non-availability of opening bank statement. Its
consequential impact on the Financial Satements, if any, cannot be quantified.

Reference is drawn to Note No 47 to the Financial Satements in respect of pending reconciliation of
settlement accounts with respective banks. Its consequential impact on the Financial Statements, if any
cannot be quantified.

Reference is drawn to Note No. 48, in respect of GST, the company is the process of reconciliation
of balances per books with GST portal, consequential impact, if any on the Financial Statements
cannot be quantified.
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33. Reporting of fraud by Statutory Auditor

The Statutory Auditors have not reported any instance of fraud under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act,
2013,

34, Corporate Govermnmance

Your Company strives to attain high standards of corporate governance while inferacting with all the
stakeholders, The increasing diversity of the investing community and the integrated nature of global capital
markets render corporate governance a vital kssue for investors, The Company believes that Bmely disciosures,
transparent accounting palicies and a streng independent Board go a long way in maintaining good corporate
govemanos, preserving shareholders” trust and maximizing long term corporate value, In pursuit of corporate
goals, the Company aoccords high importance to transparency, accounkabllity and integrity In its dealings.

35.  Compliance with Secretarjal Standards

The Company s in compliance with all applicable Secretarial Sandards as notified from Bme to tme.

36.  Appreciation

Your directors take this opportunity to express their grateful appreciation for the continued support and
cooperation recelved from our esteemed customers, vendors, dealers, Investors, business assocates and
bankers during the vear. The directors are thankful to the company’s shareholders, Central and State
Government authorities, Regulatory Authorities for thefr consistent support to the company, Your company has
been able to operate efficiently because of the culture of professionalism, Creativity, Integrity and continuous
improvement in all functions and areas as well as effident utilization of the compary's resources for sustainable

B Profitable Growth,

Inspired by bhis vision, driven by values and powered by internal vitality, your directors and employees look
forward o the future with confidence and stand committed to creating an even brighter future for all
stakeholders.

For & on bahalf of tha Board of Directors of
Iservel Technology Private Limited

/// quil;ncwﬂi San "”{"?’:

Mr. Amit Tyagi Mr. Debiprasad Sarangi
Director Director
DIN:DB317195 DIN: 07601542

Date: May 08, 2022
Place: Bhubaneskwar
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SAROJ RAY & ASSOCIATES

EOw Fa My SECRETARIES
FORM MOC. MR-

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31% MARCH, 2023

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 2 of the Companies
(Appaintment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel] Rules, 2014]

To

The Membars,

Izerveu Technology Private Limited

Plel No. E-12, SRB Tower, 11th Floor Infocity Area,
Chandaka, | E Bhubaneswar, Khordha-751024

We have conducted the Secretaral Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and ihe adherence o good cofporale pracltices by Iserveu Technology Private Limited
{hereinafter called 'the Company') for the financial vear ended 31™ March, 2023, Secrelarial
Audit wes conducted in 8 manner thal provided us & reasonable basis for evalualing the
corporate conduck/siatulory compliances and expressing our gpinion thereon

Based on our venfication of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and refurns
filed and ather records maintained by the Company and alsa the information provided by the
Company, 13 officers and authorized representalves during the conduct of Secretarial Audi,
wie hereby reporl that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 317 March, 2023, complied with the stalutory provisions listed
hereunder and glso that the Company has proper Board processes and complance
machanism in place to the exient, in the manner and subject o the reporling made
haramnafter;

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forme and returns filed and other
records maintained by Iserveu Technology Private Limited for the financial vear ended on
31" March, 2023, according to the provisions of:

i) The Companies Act, 2013 {the Act), and the Rukas mede thereunder,

fii] The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Acl, 1556 ('SCRA'} and the Rules made thare
under;{Not applicable during the Audit Period)

(i The Depositores Acl, 1585 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under,

(iwh Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1399 and ihe rules and regulalions made there
under 1o the exteni of Foreign Direct Invesiment, Overseas Direct Invesiment and
External Commercial Borrowings,; (Nat applicable during the Audit Period)

Wl The following Regulafions and Guidelines prescribed under the Secuniles and
Exchange Board of India &ct, 1992('5EBI Act'):-

& The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Reguiremenis) Regulations, 2015; (Mot applicable during the Audit Period)

b The Securilies and Exchange Boand of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulabons, 2011; (Mot applicable during the Audit Period)

c The Securties and Exchange Board of India (Prohibifion of Insider Trading)
Begulatons, 2015; (Net applicable during the Audit Period)

e
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SAROY BAY & ASSOCIATES
COMFANY BECEETANIED Conasniales el .

d.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requiremenis) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable during the Audit Period)

g, The Securities and Exchangs Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefis
and Sweal Equily) Regulations, 2021; (Mot applicable during the Audit
Periad)

f. The Securifies and Exchangs Board of India {lzsus and Listing of Mon-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable during the Audit
Pericd)

o The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Registrars 1o an Issue and Share
Iransfer Agents) Reguiations, 1953; (Not applicable during the Audit Period)

k. The Securiies and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Hegulations, 2021; (Net applicable during the Audit Perlod)

I The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Hegulations, 2018; (Not applicable during the Audit Period)

[wi) Apart from the olher statutary [ws applicable to the day fo day business of the
Company, fofowing indusiry specific laws which are also applicable to the
Company:

1. The information Technology Act, 2000,

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards
[S5-1 & 55-2) issued by The Insfiute of Company Secretaries of India (ICS1)

Curing the pericd under réview, as par the explanations and clanbcatons given 1o us, tha
Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Reguiafions, Guidefines,
siandards, etz a5 menlioned above

We furiher repor that!

The Board of Direclors of the Company s duly constituled with proper balance of Execulive
Directors and Mon-Executive Direclors. The changes in the composdion of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review weare camied oul in compiance with

the prowisicns of the Act,

Adequate notles s given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed netes on agenda were sent at Ieast seven days in advance. However, a few Board
Meelings were held in shorter notice In compliance with the provisions of Companies Act,
2013 and & systern exisis for seeking and obtaining further information and clarfications on
the agenda ilems before the meeting and for meaningful paricipation at the meeting.

We further repori that there are agequate syslems and processes in the company

commensurale with the size and operations of the company 1o monilor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines

Fage 2 of 4




SARCY RAY & ASSDCIATES

Comtinuaticn Sheet
CourANT SECHETARIES ‘ .

We furiher repor that;

Curing the period under review, the company has no specific events or actions which ara
having a major bearing on the Company's Affairs in pursuance of the above referred [aws,
rubas, regulations, guidelinas. standards, alc.

For Saroj Ray & Associates
Company 3ecretaries

; )
C5 DM Race 22

Parnar
M Mo, 5186, CP No. 136814
Feer Review Mo, 876/2020
LIDIM; FODS195EQRDO264927

Place: Bhubaneswar
Date: May 08, 2023

(This repor s lo be read with our leller of even dale which is annoxed as Annexure A and
forrns an infegral part of this repord)
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SARCY RAY & ASYOCIATES

COVPANY BECHETAN(ER Continaation Shaot.

i

Annexure A

Te

The Members

lserved Technology Private Limied

Plot Mg, E-12, SREB Tower, 11th Flogr Infocity Area,
Chandaka, | E Bhubaneswar, Khordha-751024

Our rapodt of evean dale is 10 be read along wilh this lelber.

y J Maintenance of secrefarial records 15 ihe responsibiity of the managemeni of the
Company, Qur responsibility is 1o express an opinion on these secreferial records
pased on aur audif,

2 We have followed the sudil prectices and processes gs were appropriate o obtain
reasonable assurance aboul the cormectness of the contenis of the Secretarial
records. The verifications were done on test basis 1o ensure that correct facts are
reflected in secrelarial records, We believe thal the processes and practices, followed
by the Company provide a reasonable basis for our opinkon.

3 We have not verified the comeciness and sppropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounis of the compamy,

4 Wherever required, we have obfgined the management represenation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulaticns and happening of evenis elc

B The complisnce of the provisions of Corporale and other applicable faws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibilty of the managemeni. Dur examinstion was
limited to the verfication of procedures on lest basis,

G The Secretarial Audit repor is neifher an assurance a3 to the fulure viability of tha
Company nar of the efficacy or effecliveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company,

For Saro] Ray & Associates
Company Secretaries

2RE
Place: Bhubareswar 5 0D M Rao, 3
Date: May 08, 2023 Partner
M Mo, 5185, CP Mg, 13814
UBIN | FODS\9I5E coozewast
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RAWAT & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Imdepemdent Auditor*s report

To the Members of lserveu Technebogy Private Limired
Beport on the Awdlt of the Finamcial Stabememts

Opinion

L. We have audiled the accompanying financial staements of Teerven Technology
Private Limited (“the Company™), which comprise (he balanve sheet as ar 31% March, 2023,
the statement of Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Stavement for the vear then ended, and notes to the
fipaneial slatements, including a summary of sipnificam accounting policies and olber
explanalory infotrnaton.

2. Tn our opinion and to the best of our information uel according to the explanations
given 1o us, the aforesaid financial stsements give the information requirsd by the Conpanies
Acl, 2017 {“ihe Act™} in the manter 50 requived and give a tue and fair view in contormity
with the accounting principles gemerally accepted in India. of the state of affaits of the
Company as a1 3™ March, 2023, and its loss and its cash (low and the changes in equity for
the year ended on thal daic,

Basis for oplikbn

3. We conducted our audin in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (5 As) specified
under section 143(100 of the Act. Our responsibiliies under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responzibilitiss for the Audit of de Finansial Statements section of
our report. We arc indepemdent of e Company in accordance with the Code of Evhics isswed
by the Instimie of Chartered Accountants of India txgether with the ethical requirements hat
are relevant to our audit of the financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, avl we have fulfilled our odher ethical responsibililies in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethice. We believe that the andii evidence we have obizined
i3 sufficient and appropeiate 1o provide a basis for our opinion,

Em plasiz «f mafter

fi} We dvaw wour aiteniion o Note Mo 42000 fo the Fingnciol Statemens in respect of irade
receivables. Due 1o non-implemantation of ECL polfcy, consegqueniial impact an pravisioning
of debiars on i Fingmelal Statements, i amy, cannod be guantified,

(i} Reference is drawn fo Note Mo 45 1o the Financial Stavements it respecr of bark
reconciiation. (he of the bank accounrs is nof reconciled dug fo non-ovailabilite of opening
ban statemens. M consequennial impecs on the Finanetof Statenmenis. i o, conn he
guanrified

() Reference is drawn to Note No 97 io the Financiol Srienents it respect of pending
reconciliation of seitlement accounts with respective buwks, lis consegquentiad impact on the
Financial Statemertts, Wany, cannat be guemified

403 3 307, Prospect Chambers, 41 Fiooy, 317, D. M. Road, Fort, Mombal - 00 001, S
Tal, : 3202 B154, 2084 2202 + Enall : ankitGrawatassockind com, Ak Srarwalassoc hes.com
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(i} Reference is drawn fo Notz No. 48, in respect of GST. the company is the process of
reconcifianon of batances per books with GST porind, coagegrential impact. i any on the
Fimemciol Steatements canmt b qreandified,

Onar opinion 15 pot modified in the aforesaid maiters.
Oiler [nformation

4, The Company s Board of Directors iz responzible for the nther information. The other
infonnalion comprises thee intormation ncluded in the Director’s report. but does nof include
the financial suatemenis and vur auditor's repen thercon,

Our opinion on the financial Statenients does nol cover the other information am we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion therson.

In conqection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is 1o read th: other
infunnation and, in deing 5. consider whether the other infarmation is matenially inconsisten
with the Gnancial statements or our knowledge obiained in the audic or otherwise appears 1 be
matetially misstated, If, based on the work we have perfunned, we concluds that there i3 a
material missiatemeni of this other stormation, we are tequired 1o report that facL

Responsibiliibes of management and those charged with govervance for the financial
statsments

A The Company*s Board of Directoss is responsible for the mattcrs staled in setion
134033 of the Act with respect 1o the preparation ef these financial slaterments thai give 2 ue
and fair view of the financial position and financial petformance of the Conpany in accerdane
with the Ind AS and olber accounting principles generally accepled in India. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisiens of
the Act for safsguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and defecting frauds
and viber icegularitics; selection and application of appropriale ascounting policies; making
judgments and ustimates that are reasonable and predent; and design, implemenation and
mainlenance of adequate intemal financial comtrols, thal were operating effectivaly for
ensuring the accuracy and completensss of the accounting records, relevant Lo the preparation
and preseniation of the financial statements (ha give a true and fair view and are free from
matarial misstatement, whether due to frawd or emror.

. I preparing the financial statementa, magagement is responzible for aggesging the
Compary s ability to continue as 1 going conuern, disclosing, as applicable, manters related o
going concetn and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends & liquidate the Company or to ¢e2s€ sperations. or has m reallstic altzrmat ve bul to
do s0. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for oversezing the Company’s financial

reporting process.

Aunditor's responsibiliies for the awdit of the fimancial statemenis

L Our objectives are 0 obtain reavonable asswrancs about whether the financial
statemients as 4 whobe ave free [rot morerial missutement, whether due w Iraud or eror, and
to jssve an auditor's repon that includes cur upinioi. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
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pssnrance, but is nol a guarantze that an audit copduclad in accordance with 3As will always
dotect @ material misstatement when it exists. Missiaternents can arise from fraud of ermor amd
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate. ey sould ressonably be expected
10 influence the economic dscisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

5. As part of an audil in accordance with 5A3, we exercise professional judgment and
maimiain professiotial sceptivism throughoul the audit. We alsce-

{a)  ldentify and acsess the risks of material misstatement of the financial stalements,
whether due to fraud or error. design and perform audit procedures responsive those niks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 1 provide a basis for our opindon.
The rigk of not detecting & material misstarement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting tiom error, as frawd may involve collusion, forgery, imentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of intemal contoel

by Okrain an understanding of internal financial control relevant 1o the audit in order to
design sudit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)1) of
e Aot we are alss respongible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate imermal financial control systems in place and the operating effectiveness of such
coninols.

t Exaluaie the appropriatensss of sccounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by managemenl.

(d}  Conclude on the appropriatensss of management’s e of the gaing concetn basis of
accounting and, based on te audit evidence obtained, whether 3 material uncertainly exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
confinue as a going concem, If we conclude that a matenal uncertainty exisis, we are required
o draw vour attention in our suditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financal
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opiaion, Our conclusions are
based on Uve audit #vidence obtained up to the date of our awditors repont. However, fuire
cvens or conditions may cause the Company to cease 10 conlinde 33 3 going concem.

ie) Evaluate the overall pm:iﬂntﬂli.-l}n._ structure and content of the financial stalements.
including the disclosures, and whether the financial staternents represemt the underlying
transactions and events in a mannet that achieves fair presentation.

Wateriality is the magnitnde of misstatements in the financial siatements tha, individually. o
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial saenems may be influsnced. We consider guantitative materiahity and
qualitative facbrs in {1} planming fhe scope of our gudit work and in evaluating the results of
our work: and (i) 1o evaluate (he eifect of any identficd misstuements in the financial
SEbements.

9 We communicale with thoze charged with govemance regarding, among other manses,
the planped scope and timing of the audit and significani audil Tindings, including any
cignificam Jeficiencics in intemnal contral that we idernify during our audit.




RAWAT & ASSOCIATES
CHARTEREE: ACCOUNTANTS

¢, We also provide those charged with guvernanse with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical réquirenients regarding independence. and to conmirLnicals with them all
relationzhips and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our irvlependenee,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulalery requireménls

11.  The provigians of Section 197 read with Schadule v 1y the Act are applicable only 12
public sompanies. Accordingly, reporting under Secion 1971163 of the Act is notapplicable 10
the: Comipany.

1. As required by Secticn 143(3) of the Acl, we repord it

{a)  We have sought and obiained all the mtormation and eplapations which to the best of
our knowledge and helief wen: necessary [or the purposes of o awdit.

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as requirad by law have been kepl by the
Company 50 fat a5 il appears from our exarmination of s books

{ci The Balance Sheet. the Statement of Profil and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and
Siatement of Changes in Equity dzall with by this Repont are in agreement will the boaks of
Aot

tdy  In our opinion, the aforesaid financisl stements connply with the [nd AS specitied
under section 133 of the Ac,

¢y Omthe basis of the writlen representations received from the directors as on 31°° March,
2573 taken on record by the Board of Dirsetots, none of the dirsciors iz dizgualified as on 31
arch. 2023 from being appointed as a direstar in terms of Section 164(2} of the Acr,

(£ With respeet to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls with reference to
Erancial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
oWl separale Feport in Annexure *A'

(a) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Repon in sccordance
with Rule |1 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
hest of our infemation and according 1o e explanations given (0 us:

(i} The Company has disclosad the impact of pending litigations on iz financial
siatamerit. (Refer Nois o33 w 37)

{itv The Company did net have any long-term contraces including derivative
conitacts for which there ware any material loresesgble losses.

i) There were no amouns which were tequired to be transfemred wile  Investor
Education and Protection Fuml by the Company during the year 319 March,
2021




RAWAT & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

13, Asrequircd by the Companies (Awditor’s Fepont) Order, 2000 “the Order™) istued by
the Ceniral Govemment in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Anmexmr: B” a
starement on the matwers specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order,

For RAWAT & ASSOCIATES

Chartered A¢towntants
Firm Reg. no 134100W

& .lh.-'h'- |
RN
h’ﬂkiﬁfiﬂt
Partner

Memberzhip no 416638
Mumbai, 10°* May, 2023

LDIN - 23416638 RCYFUI2ESS
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lservien Technolagy Frivinee Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended 315t March, 2023

idmornt in Lacy)
(marter cmdied Vemr saded
Particulars Note No. | 30032023 | 30-12-2022 | 31031022 | 3-3-2023 | 31-a3-2012
Awdited Unnudited |  Audited Audited Andited
Revenue from Orperations 9 264607 1B 160 2.301.61 BA06R.52 7,882,048
Cither Incoma a0 JR0.50 _307.51 fl.83 HO0.34 183,50
—I6.6T 302401 1363.44  BB6R.91 L.068.38
Expenses
- Con of Services 1 1,19898 2120677  LROT30  73RE34 #.665.87
- Chinfige In Inwestores ol Stock-in-trode 22 F38.97 {557.26) SEAT {32647 (R TR
- Employes Benefit Exponisgs 23 429.43 420.87 313,46 1613.55 U4 A
- Finance Ciosd 24 10,67 FL42 3650 18554 13632
Diepreciation Expenses s 58.17 46.50 16.53 16585 86,35
- ither Experses 16 46431 S60.51 146,36 20085 31R.53
Tuinl Expenses 336150  2428.81 2137881 11403547 03667
Profit / (Lass) Before Tax (434.83) (60470 {1547} {2,166.76} 28.71
Income Ty Expense
- Current ftax . - (8.50) - 46.07
- Deferred 1ax Expense’ (Gains) 9.53 21,56 1858 4842 {36.82)
Total Tax Expense o.53 21.66 10.0H AEA2 985
Profil/ | Loss) lor the year (444.6T) (62634} (I5.55) (LIIS1HE) 18,80
Diher Comprehensive Income
Tegires thar will ot he reclaszifled to Profic or Loss
(i) Remessurements of Defined Benefit Plans 1084 - 1.83 x4 1.83
T relating to abave 287 - {48 181 0.48
Oither Comprehensive ncodme, Met of Tax E_.pg - 1.35 R0 135
Totnl Comprehensive Income (436.64)  (626.36) (24.20)  (2.207.16) 0.1
Esrnings Per Share (EFS)
- Paid-up Equity Shane Capital 23100 2320040 232090 @ 233090 3.32,000
. Fage valve per share LD ¥ 100 2100 2100 *1.00
- Earnings per Equity Share ) £ 18813 X298 -T10.43 (950,99 ta.T

{Face value Bs | per share)

frn bermz af vor roped of even dute
For Rawal & Asiocintes
Charters) Accountanis

Fipm Regd. Now: 134100W

For ond om hehalfl of the Boarsd of Direciars of

Dic ks L) Caim
nﬁm aanﬁA-éi/

Min wat

Partner

Membership Mo: 416638 g Dl” = FeN] 542 TN ﬂ]l'.l"l.H
UDIN: 21341 6638BGY FUJ2856 Rhobaneswar, Mew Delhi,

Mumbai, Bth May, 2023 G
Annual Accoounts Z0Z2-22



lservew Technobogy Frivate Limdted

Statemend of Cash Flows for the vear ended 315t March, 323

Cash Flow from opersfing sotivities

ProdiviLess) before tax from continuisg opemations
Profit bofore tnx fros discontfnuing operstions

Prolid before tnx

Adjaussnt To reconcile profil belitre s to net cash fows
Deepreciation! umarizatian on continuing operstions
Decresse | { Increase] i profit due o Ind As adjusimenis
Drecremse | (Increxee) n profie due to prioe period Adjustments
[mlerest expenss

Imienest (income)

Price pericd expenses

Ohperating profit before working capital chages
Movements in working capital |

Imcreases [decrease) in trade payables

Imcrensn [ (docredse) in other faaecial liahilivies
Increnss ¢ {decrense} in provisions

Increase / {decrease) in oiher current labilioe:

Encronse |/ (decrense) in lavesiments
Decrense / (Increase ) io trode recelvalbiles

Drecrease I {livcrems) in invemiories
Decresse ! {incresse) In ather Mon Currem Asset
Deingass /| inorease h in ks

Dwarease / | [nerease ) im loans and sdvances

Diecrenze / (incranse] in oihes comrent nases

Caak gevssrated from fused in} cpeniions

Dlirect toees et of refands)

Moet cash flow from! (used in) opersting sctiviles [A]

Cash Mowes from investing aciivities

Purchass of fixed assets, inchudieg CWIP and canitul sdsances
Sake of Fixed Assst

locrenss in Secarity Deposit

Rent Tncame

Invesinuents

Interest recefvad

et cash flow from! (used in) imesting setivities (B)

Cash flows from Bnancing activities

Procecds from kang-term hormwings

Frocesds from Esuance of preference shace capital
Bepaymant of shori-ierm borrowings

Enteresi paid

et cash flow Froms {used in) in financing sctivities ()

vt im Lacxh
- 3-2003 Ji-03-2012
Audies Aulited
i3, 166.76) 18.71
2,16k, T} 8.7
155,89 b 55
{7902 [44.48)
{77.46) .
185,44 47,15
{183,704 { 13.405)
{2,155.88) Ly
23498 18740
{38EAT) I, 444, 94
125.53 121.4%
{93.3%) {1651}
146528 (5043.12)
I i 1,955,315
{32647 [ Hi0. 063
{157.81) {EAT)
12,68 E o
(2 531 {20.49)
1,33 {1096, 86)
EL50 (b I1635)
(7108 {120.69)
1452 {6.437.04)
(62.84) {162.42)
561
i56.19 I 265
TR.07 149,
4000 .
; A4, 186,52
(T2R.01) 1,684.10
41 (4715
(683,71} S0



et incressed decresse] in cash and ash equivalents (A + B - C)

Effect of exchesge differances on cath & cash equivalents
hekd bn foreign corrency

Cash and cash equivatents af du b ganeriingg o the vewr

Casih anel cash eyaivabents it the ond of te pear

Componems of ash and cash equivalens
Caah in Faewd

Cheques’ drafts on band

W't hanks- in current setoun

Toinl ash apd cash equivaliets (note )

As per pur report of even date

For Huwet & Associnfes
Repd Moo 1341000 2

M at

Partmer
Membersiip No: 418638 %0 ,
UDIN: ZMI6638B0GYFLIIS ™
Munnbul, Sth My, 2021

&

1), —tA3E)
1,276.08 A
T &4 127608
= 25
T HT 1,275.83

—l LGSR

Ftriumhiﬂﬂ:hlud-ftﬂrmur

De kot bﬂﬂvg

Bebiprasad Sarumgi
Hrector

[DHIN: P60 542
Bhiibnseswar,

o7

Director
[NIN: DR3ITT 195
New Dield,
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Standalowe Statement of changes in equity for the vear ended Mareh 31, 2023

— flimouns in I
Reserve & Surplus -
. Equity Redermabile nan
wlnrs Share Security Graot Retained | “™@0lative non Total Equ
Copital | Premium | Received | Earmings | convertible Tatsl "
preference
shares
AL At 31 March 3001 232 1604 27 500 11678 T
Ezsuance of new Redeemshle non cumaudative nop . - — S
viertihle peefenence chores
4,083,185
[ T 1.34 408553 4,086, 52
AL AL MEr:Il E:: "- : ] 2 : e -
232 160437 5.0 1249 64 1.34 1,742 3% ] EEFITE
[Prodic during the period
Sl j:%! 1D1::r . (ELT| ey | (351.04) {351,064
0 132 L.604.37 T00 EHEID T EFE BT %R
[Profit during the period — i ]
e = LENTY | (793,11) o501
AL AL 30 Sep 20322 2.32 |,604.27 .00 [1,014.52) EET] 50810 4.&3; ;;u
[Profit during the perd ol
it < (626.38) (626.36) 626 36
At Al 31 Dea 3033 .52 627 .00 i1.640.&7] 334 (2R 2650 Jjﬂﬂ'-'.z-t:l
I rodit during the period
ATM_;:";::}H::n - - (514.10 (514,00 [EIERTT) |
AL AL 3| M J2 | 60427 .00 (2, 15497 334 {342.360)] 384514

For Hawnt & Associsles
riered Accouninnls

Regil. Na.: 134109W

Membership Mo 41 G638
LVERIM: 254 166388 YFLLIZS
Mumbai 8ih May, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Diire curs of

Deebiprisad Sarangi
Director

DM : 76l | 543
Bliubaneswar

r:)@'é:l'r‘bnf-iag .iﬂﬂwﬁ%

)
Anit Tyagg

Director
[HN: (E317 108
Mew Dethi
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Accompanying notes (o the Mnancial statemenis for ihe vear ended 31 March, Z023

. CORPORATE INFORMATION
ISarvel] iz a [HPP certifiad FinTech company repgistersd imder the Start-up India proerm of Government
of India dated 27 Septembar 2016, supported by NSTDER. pledging towards making India a financial
inclusive society. It has spent 5 vears and more and has sugcesslully run several technology solutions In
parinership with Banks, NBFCs, Firancial Instiution plavers and Comporate Business Comrespondenis.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

A Compliance with Ind-AS
The financial stalements comply in all material aspects with Indian Aceounting Standards {Ind-AS) notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act,

B Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis. Mone of the asset or liability is
mieasured at fair value basis.

C  Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented In Indian Rupees () which is the currency of the primary economic

environment in which the company operates (the "functional currency"). The values are rounded to the
nearest lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

D PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The company presents its balance sheet in onder of Hquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement
within 12 months afier the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non—
cument) is presented in Note 37,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are penerally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only
offset and reported nel when, in addition to having an uncenditional legally enforceable right to offset the
recopnised amounts withowt being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend o scitke on a net
basis in all of the following circumstances:

* The normial course of business
# The event of default
* The event of insolvency or hankruptcy of the Company and/or its counter parties

E CURRENT YERSUS NON-CURRENT CLASSIFICATION
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the restated ststement of saset and lisbilities based on
current’ non-current chssification,

(I} An asset is classified as current when it is:
= Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal eperating cydle

# Held primarily for the purpose of trading

s Expected 1o be realized within twelve months after the reporting period. or

»  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to scitle a liability for &
least twelve months after the reparting period

Annual Accounts 2022-23
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(i) All pther assets are clhissified a8 aon-curnsnl.

ity A lability is classified as current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It 5 due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional night to defer the settlement of the lshility for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

- % % B

{iv) All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

{v) Deférred tax assets and lisbilitics are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

Based on the nature of service and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months
for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

F REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind-AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicsble) is measured
at fair value of the consideration recetved or receivable, Ind-AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers
outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers
and supersedes current revenue recopnition guidance found within Ind-AS,

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in
ind -AS-115:

Step 1 ddentify contract(s) with & customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between v or more
perties that creates enforceable rights snd obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must
be met.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations inthe contract: A performance obligation is a promise ina contract
with a customer 10 transfer 8 good or service 1o the customer.

Siep 3: Determine the transsction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the
Company expecis to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services 1o & customer,
excluding ameunts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obdigations in the contract: For a contract that has
more than one performance obligation, the company allocates the transaction price 1o each performance
obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration 1o which the company expecis 1o be
entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revense when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

i Sale of devices : Revenue from contract with customer is recognised point in time when
performance obligation is satisfied (when the trade is executed).

il  Sale of services : Revenue from service is recognised when the control in services is transferred as
per the terms of agreement with customer i.¢. as and when the services are rendered. These include
commission which is charged par ransaction executed.

li. ~ Recharge commission: The company facilitates recharge of talk time, bill payments and eamns
commission for the respective services. Commission [ncome is recognized when the control in
service is transfermed to the customer whan the services have been provided by the Company.

iv.  Interest income - Inferest income is recognised on & lime proportion basis taking into account the
emount outstanding and the rate applicable, Interest income is included under the head "Orther
income” in the Statement of Frofitand Loss. Inierest Income rom Mnancial assets is recognised
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when it is probable that fiture economic benefits will flow to the company and the amount of
income can be measured relinbly,
G INCOME-TAX
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the taxable income of the cumem
period based on the applicable income tax rates adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilites
altributable 1o temporry differences and unused tax losses,

(1) Current Tax

The current income tax charge Is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or subslantively enacled at
the end of the reporting period in the couniries where the company and fs subsidiaries and associates
operete and generate axable income. Management perfodically evalustes positions taken in tax returns with
respect 10 situslions in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpratation. It establishes provisions
wihtere appropriaie on the basis of amounts expected 1o be pald to the tax authorities.

(1i) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the fimancial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax lisbilities are penerally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductbie emporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utllised. The approprisieness of carrying amount of deferred tax assets and
liability is reviewed at the end of cach reporting perlod. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the llability ks seted or the asset reafised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except 10 (e extent that it rdlates 1 tems recognised in
other comprehensive income o directly in equity.

H INVENTORY
Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value afier providing for obsolescence’s and ather
lomses, where considered necessary. Cost of inventory comprises all cosl of purchase and other costs
meurred in bringing the inventories 1w thelr present conditions and locations. Cost of purchased Inventory
i8 determined afler deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated cost of completion and estimated cost necessary to make the
sake. Inventories are valued at first in frst cut method.

I LEASES

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for office premises, vehicles and equipments.
The Company assesses whether a contract contains 2 lease, at incepiion of a contract. A eontract is, or
tontains, & leasc if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
ime in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the rght to control the use of an
identified asset, the Comparyy assesses whether: (i) the contact involves the use of an identified asset (ii)
the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the
lease and (iil} the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROLU™) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term
of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases, For these shori-term and low value leases,

the Company recopnizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lesse,

Certain lease arrangements inchusdes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease

term, ROL assets and lease fabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be
exercsed.
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The right-of-use assets are infiaily recognized at cost, which comprises the initinl amount of the lease
liability adjusted for eny lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any
initial direct costs less any lecase incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Right-of-use nssets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-ling basis over the shorier
of the lease term and useful life of the underlying assct,

The lease liability is initially mensured ot amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments.
The lense payments are discounted using the interest mte implicit in the lease o, if not readily determinable,
using the cremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Leasc liabilitics are
remeasured with & comesponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company chamges its
assesamnent IT whether it will exercise an extension or a Ermination Opion.

Lease lability and ROU asset have been separaiely presented in the balance sheet and lease payments have
been classified as fimancing cash Mows.

4  PROVISIONS
Provisions are récognised when the company has 2 present obligation, legal or constructive, as a result of

a pas evenl, it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required 1o setile the obligation
ami a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where a provision s measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present oblization, its carrying
amount is the present velue of those cash flows. If the effiect of the time valve of money s materal,
provisions are discounted using a current pre tax mate that reflects , when appropriate, the risk specific to
the linbility.

Financial instrument - initial recognition
K FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(i} Date of récognition

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans, debt securities, deposits and borrowings are
initially recognised on the trade date, Le., the date that the Company becomes a party to the confractual
provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the
market place. Loans are recognised when funds are transferred 1o the customer’s account. The Company
recognises debt securities, deposits and bormowings when funds reach the Company.

(ii) Initial messurement of finsncial instruments

The classification of financial instruments &t initial recoznition depends on their contractual erms and the
business model for managing the instruments. Financial instruments are inftially messured at their fir
valse, except in the case of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at FVTPL, transaction costs
are added to, or subtracted from, this amount, Trade receivables are measured at the ransaction price.

{Hif) Messuromeont atcgorics of fAnaocial aascis and labilitics

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business moded for managing the assets and
the asset’s contractual terms, measured at sither:

* Amortised cost,

* Fair value through other comprehersive meomme (FVOCT)

» Fair value through profit and koss (FVTPL)

Financial labilities, other than loan commitments and financial gusrantess, are meéasured at FY'TPL when
they are derivative instruments or the fair value designation is applied.
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L FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
{i) Bank balance, Loans and Trade receivables at amortised cosl.

The Company measures Bank balances, Loans and Trade receivables at amortised cost if both of the
fidlbowing condiions are mer:

* The financial asset is held within 2 business model with the objective w hold financial assets in order o
collect contractual cash flows

* The contractual terms of the finencial asset glve rise on specified dates 1 cash fows that are solely
payments of principal and fnerest (SPPL) on the principal amount cautstanding,

{a} Business model test

The business model reflects how the Company manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is,
whether the Company’s objective is solely o collect the contractual cash flows from the assets or is to
collact both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arfising from the sale of assets. The Company's
business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basig, but at & higher level of spgresaied
portfolics and is based on observable factors such as:

* How the performance of the business model and the financial assets hald within that business model ere
evaluated and reportied o the entity’s key management personnel

* The risks that affect the performance of the business model {(and the financinl assets held within that
business miodel) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed

* How managers of the business are compensated

* The expected frequency, value and fiming of sales are also important aspects of the Company's assessment
The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarins without taking “warst case’ ar
‘stress case’ scemarlos into account. If cash flows after initlal recognition are realised in a way that Is
differemt from the Company’s original expeciations, the Company does not change the classification of the
remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such Information when assessing
newly originated or mewly purchased financial assets going forward.

(b} BPPI test

Where the business model is to hold assets o colkect contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash
flows and sell, the Company assesses whether the financial instrument’s cash flows represent solely
peyments of principal and interest {the “SPPI test').

In mzking this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with
a basic lending arrangement iz, interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit
risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where
ihe confractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basie lending
armangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(i} Derecognition of financial assels due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Company derecognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have been renepotiated to the
extent that, substantially, it becomes a new asset, with the difference recognised as derecognition gain or
loss, 1o the extent that an impaimment loss has not already been reconded.
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When assessing whether or not to derecognise any fssef, amongst ofhers, the Company considers the
following factors:

* Change in currency
* Introduction of an equity featre
= Change in counter party

[ the modification is such that the instrument would no longer meet the SPPI eriteria. If the modification
does not resull in cash fows that are substantially different, the modification does not result In

derecognition
(i) Derecognition of financial assets other than due 1o substantial modification of terms and conditions
(a) Financial assets

A [financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of o fnoncinl asset or part of a group of similar fsancial
assela) is derecognised when the rights to recelve cash flows from the financial assel have expired. The
Company alse derecognises the financial asset i it has both ransferred the financial asset and the trensfer

qualifies for derecognition.
The Cotnpany has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:

= The Company has transferred its contracmal rights 1o receive cash flows from the financial asset,

(=" o

* [t rotains the rights 1o the cash flows, but has pssumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay w0 a third pamy under a ‘pass—through’ amrangement
A transfer only qualifies for derecopnition if either:

*  The Company las transferral substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

® The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
assat, e has fransferrad control of the asset

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only i, the transferee has the practical
ability 1o sell the assel in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercize that ability
unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer,

When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and
has retained control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement, in which case, the Company also recognises an associated
Hability. The transferred asset and the sssociated linbility are measured on a basis that reflacts the
rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

) Fimancial Habilitles

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, canceled
or expires. Where an existing financial lHabdlity is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing lability are substantially modified, such
i exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of & new liability. The difference between the carrving value of the original financial liability and
the consideration paid i recognised in profit or loss,
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M DETEEMINATION OF FAIR VALUE
The Company measures certamn financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly trensaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs. In oeder to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments
are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniguoes, as summarised below:

Level | includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity
Instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quotad price,

Lewvel 2 finencial instruments the falr value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market
is determined using valuation technigues which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
Included in fevel 3. The Company evaluates the leveling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-
instrument basis and reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting

period.

N CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on
hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other shor-term. highly liguid investments with
original maturities of three manths or less that arc readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafis.

O PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
All items of property, plant and aquipment are stated ot historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s earrying amount or recognised as o scpamate assch, as
approprizte, only when it is probable that fiture economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The camying amount of any companent
aceounted for as A separnte asset is derecognizod when replaced. All other repairs and mamtenance are

charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.
(i} Transition o Ind-AS

On transition to Ind-AS, the company has elected to continue with the carmying value of all of its property,
plant and equipment recognised as at 1 April 2019 messured as per the previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

(1i) Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Deprecintion is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residuml values,
aver their estimated useful lives prescribed in Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013, stated as under :

(a) Computer & equipments - 3 years
(b)) Office equipments - 5 year
() Furniture & fixture - & years
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{d) MNetwork equipments = 13 vears

The assets” residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate. at the end of each
reporting periad,

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to s recoverable amount if the asset’s camying
amount is greater then its estimated recoverable amount, Gains and Josses on disposals arc determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount, These are included in profit or loss within other gains' (losses).

F INTANGIBLE ASSETS

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the
expected fufure economic benefits that are attributable to It will flow to the Company.
Intangible assets acquired saparately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The eost of an intangible
asset comprises its purchase price and any directly astributable expenditure on making the asset ready for
its imended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
areé carfied ot cost less any accumulsted amortisstion and any eccumulated impaimment losses.
The useful lives of infangible assets are assessed (o be efther finite or indefinite. Intangible azsets with fGnite
lives are amortised over the useful cconomic life, The amortisation period and the amortisation method fior
an intangible assct with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year-end, Changes in the
expected useful life, or the expecied pattern of consumption of fisture economic benefits embodied in the
dsset, are accounted for by chanpging the amaortisation period or methodology, as sppropriste, which are
then treated as changes in accomning estimates, The amortisation expense on intangible agsets with finiie
lives Is presemted as a separmle line item in the siatement of profit and loss. Amortisation on ossets
acquired/sold during the year is recognised on a pro-rata basis to the Statement of Profit and Loss from /
upto the date of acquisition/sale.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to their
resicun] values over their estimated wsely)] lives

Crains or losses from derecognition of intangible assets are measured a5 the difference between the net
dispreal proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
when the assel is derecognised.

The Company's intangible assets comprise of sofiware, mobile application, website and trademerk. The
intungible assets are amonised over its findie useful economic fife.

Software Development - 10 vears
Trade mark= 10 Years

) IMPAIEMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSET

Non-financtal assets are testad for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may ot be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceads its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the hizher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and valve in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped &1 the lowest levels for which these are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash [nflows from other assets or groups of assels (cash-generating units), Mon-financial
asaets other than goodwill that sulfersd an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impaiment
at the end of each reporting period.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to thetr present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
i ke assel. In determining feir value less cosis of disposal, recent market fransactions are taken inio
account, If no such transactions can be ideetified, an appropriate valuation model is used, These
calculations ane comoborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or
other available fair value indicators.
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R SEGMENT REPORTIMG

Operuting segments ane reporied in @ manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided © the chief
operating decision maker. The Company’s primary business segments are reflecied based on the principal
busimess carried out, e Revenue from sales of services such as [T enabled services and transacton based
services and sale of devices, The rizk and returns of the business of the company 15 not associaed with

genpraphical sepmentation, hence there is no secondary segment.

5 EARNING PER SHARE
Basic eprnings per share is calculated by dividing:

* the profit atributable to ovwners of the Company
* by the weighted average number of equity shanes outstanding during the financial year.

Diluted eamings per share adjusts the figures used inthe determination of basic earnings per shire to take
inio aceount:

¢ the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity
sheres, pnd

* the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been cutstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive polential equity shares,

T ROUNDING OFF

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off 10 the nearest lakhs as
pet the requirement of Schedule 11, unless otherwise stated.

' CONTINGENT LIABILITY
A contingent liahility iz a possible obligation thet arizes from past events whese existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more umeertain future events beyond the control of company
or & present obligation that is nod recognised hecawge it is not probable that an outflow of resourcss will be
recuired to setthe the obligation, The company does not recognise & contingent liability but discloses iis
existence in the financial stements, Pavmenis in respect of such liabilities, ifany are shown as advance,

Y PREYIMIS FIGURES
Firmncial statements have been prepared in accoedance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rulez , 2015 { IND AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Compamies Act, 2013 and cther recopnised
accounting practices and policies to the eéxtent applicable. The previous years figures have been
regrouped reclussifies wherever necessary, to make them compurnble,

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTHONS

The preparation of the Company™s financial satements requires managemeant o make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenoes, expenses, assets and lisbilities, and the
accompunying disclosures, ns well ns the disciosure of contingont liabilitios. Uncerainty about those
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that reguire o materinl adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilitics affected in future periods,

Judgmenis

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments:
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(1) Business model pssessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business
mode] test. The Company determines the business model ata level that reflects how Company”s of financial
assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgment
reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets i3 evaluated and their
performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and
how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Compeny monitors finonciol asscts measured at
arportised cost that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal und
whether the reasons are consistemt with the objective of the business for which the asset was held.
Monitoring is part of the Company”s confinuous assessment of whether the business model for which the
remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has
been a change in business model and s0 a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

{11} Fair valve of financial instraments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that wouold be received to sell an asset or paid to trensfor
a liability in 'an cederly transaction in the principal {or most advantageous ) market at the messurament date
under current market conditions {i.e., en exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly ohservable
or estimated using another vahsation technigue, When the fair valwes of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are détermined wing
a variety of valustion technigques that include the use of valuation models, The inputs 1o these models are
tmken from obgervable markets where peesible, but whers this is nod feasible, sstimation 15 required in
estnblishing fair velues. Judpments and estimates inclede considerations of hiquidity and model inputs
relared o [tems such as eredit risk (bath own and counterpanty), funding value adjustments, correlation and
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Agcompanying notes to the financial statemonts for the vear ended 31t March, 2023

Mote 5 - Right of use Assets:
A mrad il in Lacs)
As at As mt
Particulnrs S5t March, 2023 Xist Mareh, 2022
Cpening Balance 132.19 10527
Additions I.594.65 26452
Deductions’ Adjustment = .
Amortisation - -
Closing Balance 172884 13219
! lated D it
Opening Balance 7762 17.46
Additions 122,34 40,16
Deductions’ Adjustment - -
Amortisation = 2
Closing Balance 9%, 56 Tr.02
Totml 1. 328.9% .58
{Refer Note 29)
Mote & - Invenliories:
Stock-in-trade F18.20 19181
_— —_—
fax valwed and certified by the Management)
Mote 7 - Investments:
Current Investrmends (FID} 2ETT.84 504312
P ———————— 1

MNate 8 - Trade Receivables:
Trade Receivables (Considered Good (Securad)) - =
Tmede Bocelviabbes (Uansidered Good (1 msecared |

Trade Keceivables 2XR0.14 2055.13
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A wraursr i Lacs)
As wt As ot
FParticulin A5t Miarch, 2023 3= March, 2022
Mote ¥ - Cash sad Cash Equivalents:
Cash in hand . 0.23
Balances with Bank (Corrent accosniz) 0787 1.275.83
TO7.BT 1.276.08
L ———————— ] — T —
There are no repadriation resirictions with regard to cash and cash
equivalents as at the end of the reporting period and prior periods.
Note 10 - Other Non-Current Assets:
Security Deposits 169,42 1143
]
Mivte 11 = Loans and Advinces
(1) Loan receivable {Considered Good (Secured)) .
(i) Loan receivable Considered Good (Unsecured)
Loan to Emplovees 4497 57.65
Diher loans . i
{iif} Lown recelvable which have significant increade in credit risk. £ -
{iv) Loan receivahle credit impared. £ 5
44.97 5765
Mete 12 - Other Curreint Assets:
Prepaid Expenses 1014 | 6546
Advaace Szlary 1917 020
Advance Tux {net of provisions ) 25781 159,62
38312 176,28
Mote 13 - Oiher Financlal Asseis:
Advapce o partics 427 B 179.98
Advapce Recoverable in cash or kind 865.34 54578
Cither finuncial assets 241 £01.09
1,315,141 131684

Annual Assounis 2022-53
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{ A moaid I Lires)
As at As af

Particalars 3ise March, 2023 Siai March, 2022
Mote 14 - Deferred Tax Asset: (net)
Duferred Tax Assets 11.28 5071
The movenent in deferred tax-assels and linbilities during the
year ended 3 151 March 2003
Deferred Tax Asset {Net)
Cpening Balance B | 2289
(DTL})/ DTA on difference of carrying amount of assets {22.36) 10.4%
Opening amount allowed on payment basis and others 2335 26,51

i1.28 3971

e — _—

Annual Acsounts 20Z2-23
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Accompunying notes to the financial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2023

A marad fn Eaes)
As mt As ot
At Mareh, 2023 31si March, 20322
Mote 13 - Equity Share Capital and Other Equity:
A. Equity Share Capital:
(i} Equity Share Capital
£,00,00,000 (2,00,00,000) Equity Shares at Rs. 1 each 2,000 2,000
{ii) Isswed and Paid-up Equity Share Capital
232,090 (2,32,090) Equity Shares at R, | each 232 232
(i) Maovements in Equity share Capital
232,090 (I.32.090) Equity Shares at Bs. | each 232 232
Movement during the vear - F
L3000 (2 32 090 Equity Shares at s, | coch 2.32 I33

Terms and Rights attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one cless of Equity shares having o par value of 1/-. Each holder of equity shares
s eatitled 1o one vole per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of squity shares
will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the company, sfter distribution of all proferentinl |
amexinls. The distribution will be in proportion to the aumber of equity shares held by the sharsholders,

(iv) Share of the Company held by Halding Company
LIR3T0 (1.18.370) Equity shares of ¥ 1 each, Fully Paid-up
held by Miyogin Finteeh Limited 1.18 I.L&

(v) Detaile of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Equity Share As at 3t March, 2623 As al 3 st March, 2022
Mame of Shassinlilars Wa, ol Sk Ve al Halliap M. of Slriris ol Hediling
Debashis Mohapaira 12,800 5.52% [2RO0 5.52%
Diebi Pragad Sarangi 62500 25,94% 62,520 26.94%
Amit Tyagi I 2L By 550 12,800 5.50%
Sanjib Paruda 12 R0Gk 5.52% 12,800 S50
Umakanta Sphon 12800 3.51% 12 804 5%
Miyogin Fintech Limited 1.IR370 51.00% 118370 51.00%
233,040 O 232090 P00,
[ — .

There are ne shares (sseed for considerativn other than cash.

Allnuagl ACOUNS Z0L2-23



{vi} Details of shares held by promoters at the year end

Izerven Technology Private Linived

Equity Shares As ot 3 st Murch, 223 Anar 3sr March, 2032
e e s aFShares %, of Haléing Ma. of Bhare 84 af Blaliling
Debashis Mohapatra 12800 5.32% 12800 5.52%
Diebi Prasad Sarangi 62320 26.94% 62 520 26.04%
Aumil Tyagi 12,200 5.52% 12,800 553%
Sanjib Parida 12,3001 5.52% 12,800 3.52%
Utnekanta Sshoo 12,8(H 3.52% 12,800 5%
Mivogin Fintech Limited 118,370 31 1,185,370 51.00%

232,090 . D 33,090 1040 %
B. Other Equity

As at 31st March, 2023 At Z1et March, 2022
Securities premium reserue 560745 56T A5
Grant Received 500 5.0
Retaned Eamings 215408 129,64
Redeemable Mon-convertible preference shares 134 3.34

354081 82545

Mature & Purpose of the Reserve:

SeCHribits premiom reserve :

Securities préemium is credited when shares are issued af premium. This will be wtilised in accordance with

the provisions of the Act

Grant Received:

Sanetion of Product Development and Marketing' Publicity Assistance under Odisha Startup policy - 2016,

Retained Earnings :

Retmined camings are the profits shat the Company has earsed till date, less any tansfers o general reserve,

dividends or other distributions paid to sharehnlders.

Redeemahle non cumulative non convertible preference sharest

Rodeemabbe non cummuistive non convertible preference shures is credited when such shares are issued .

This will be uiilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act,

{1} Becurities premium reserve aceannt

As ad 31st Muareh, 2023 As at 3158 Mareh, 2022
Crpening bulance 568745 1,604,279
Addition during the vear on issue of shares- . 4,083.18
Closing halance 5,687.45 565745

Annual Acoounts 2022-23
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(i} Grant Heceived
At 3Tt Muareh, 2023 Az wt Slei March, 3023
Opening balance 5.00 5.00
Addition during the yenr 3 a
Choaing balance 3.00 5.00
i) Retained Earnings
As wt 30st Mareh, 2623 As a3t March, 2022
Opening balonce 12064 116,78
Met Prafit for the period (2,215.18) 1886
Imerim dividend paid {including dividend distribut - -
Prior perlod adjustmnet (Refir Noie no 40) (7744}
il iS L0l Weiimci LR EE S Y dinae g e ITTET SN
s T b s o e e b " i
- Resmensurements of defined benefit obligation, §.03 -
Closing bakance (2,134.98) 120,54
(iv) Redeemabie non cumulative nan convertible preference shares
Authorised share eaplial
g mi 31w March, 523 As al 31 Mareh 2022
Numher of Mumber of
Amnumi shares Amount shores
L0008 {Cne Lakh Only) Preference Shares of
face valise Rs, 10/- (Rupees Ten onlv) aach with
effiect from Februany 11, 2022 (iR 100,000 1000 1.4H0 a0
As at 31 Murch 2023 Az at 31 March 2022
Capital Contribution from :
Hold [-'ﬂ.'lllﬂ.!' Mumber of shares
As AL 3181 March 2022 114 33,444
FYRLFRIRICELR WULEIRE AL ML, AMEZ WP 0 IV, 5 5
Az An 31t March 2023 3.3 31,444

Annual Acocounts 2022-23



Iserven Technology Privage Limited
Awnmmnﬁng notes to the financiyl stalements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

A mroueny fir Lires)
Az at Asat
J1st March, 2023 et March, 2022

Non-Current Liabilitips:

Note 16(a) - Long-term Borrowings:

Loan frem Others 4005 -
Nate 16{b) - Short-term Borrowings:
{1} Loan from Directors T.00 T.00
(ii} Loan from Others 12,50 Td.61
(i) Loan from Niyogin - Capital Contribution 1,023.10 G13.48
e TR ____H—_
1,042 60 [.66]. 10
Note 17 - Other Liabilities:
&
Etutery Dhges 51.59 14408
Note 18(a) - Trade Payables:
(2} Due from Micrp Entreprise and Smal| Entreprise
Creditors for Expenses = -
(b) Dues of ereditor other than Micrs Entreprise and Small Entreprise
Creditors for Expenses 508.41 273.43
50841 273.43
Note 18 (b) - Other Financial Liabilities:
Liabilities towards channel partmers 2,176.56 hlﬂf-g
Provision for expenses w“'g'g r 4?3:43
Liability towards merchant loan 4‘11!9 v :
Income received in advance l S:H-IE 5331
Lease liability TR 3, 128,44
4,542, 2 | ih,

Annual Accounts 2022-23
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Accompanying notes 1o the finincial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(Aot in Lacs)
As ai A i
31st March, 2023 st March, 2023
Note 19 - Revenue from Operations;
Drevice Sale B56,46 3, 196.68
Commission Income 5,726.51 4.205.26
Licensing integration fees 1 dg;'gg - 4&3.!5
68 B2 (8
Note 20 - Other Income:
Discount Received .35 [.45
Excess Provision write back 34721 158,45
Marketing Fees 61.73 10.00
Interest on Fixed Deposits 170.3 12.65
Interest income an Security Depaosit £.06 041
Interest on Income Tax Refund 4.06 -
Sponshorship Services 7.75 .35
Interest on Employee Advance 4.28 -
Service [ncome 186.59 -
Cither Income .63 -
Rental Income .10 -
Foregin Exchange 565 ~
Interest on Lonn / Advance 5.64 .
80:0,35 [83.30
Note 21 - Cost of Services & Purchasos for Stocl:
Commission Cost 6.212.84 1,631.34
Purchases of Devices 1,175.50 3,034.53
7.388 34 6.665,87
—_———
Note 12 - Change in Inventories of Stock-in-trade:
Opening stock 191.81 91.82
Closing stock 518.29 151.81
tlz-us.ﬂ:ll { 100.00)
Bata 23 - Employe: Benofit Espenses
547
Salaries, wages, bomus e, l'j;;';; gf_,-h] 1
EPF (Emplover Contr.) 41'52 005
Stall welfare expenses 15,60 0,98
Suibe aypaie: T 1613.55 __ 95050
— N

Annusl Accounte 2022-23
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{Ameount in Lacs)
As As ot
Ast March, 2023 318t March, 2033
Note 24 - Finance Cost:
Interest on loan 115.60 41.36
Interest expenses on lease liability 69,94 579
Bank charges - 79.17
—_—
185.54 12632
Note 25 - Depreciation Expenses;
Amortization of RO 10541 35.64
Depreciation 60344 30,71
16585 G615
Note 26 - Other Expenses;
Advertisement charges 1349 3610
Interest on GST - .31
Office Repair & Maintenanee 5.08 12.18
Communication expenses 39.72 4320
Rent expenses 19,94 11.74
IT expenses 52302 61,53
Commitment charge 373.11 -
Travelling expenses 42.63 15.26
Legal & Professional foes 25.63 44.52
Rates & Tax - 2.63
Brokersge charges - {1.26)
First line default guarantee cos 37162 1337
Miscellaneous expenditire B 15 T70.64
Bad diakt 158.87 -
Provision for doubtful debt 215,00 .
Membership foes 15.00 -
Bank ch 9960 -
w 2,043 85 31853
_— e ——— ]

Annual Accounts 2052-23



Iserven Technology Private Lim e
Accompanying notes iy the financisl statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
{Amount In facs)
Az al Ad at
31wt March, 2023 J1at March, 2022
Note 27 - Earnings per Share
The basic exmings per share has been calculated hassd on the following:

Net profit after tax available for equity shareholders (2.207.16) 201,21
Welghted averape number of equity shares 232,080 232,000

The reconciliation between the besic and the diluted eamings per share is as follows:

Basic eamings per share i) (50.99) 1.7
Effect of dilution , .
Diluted earnings per share (4] (050,99) 871

Weighted average numiber of equity shares is computed for the purpose
of caleulating diluted earning per share, after giving the dilutive impact
of the outstanding stock uptions for the respective years,

Weighted average number of shares for computation of Basic Ep3 2,32.090 2,32,000
Dilutive effiect of vutstanding stock options
Dilifive effect of contingent considerstion

Anti Difutive potential outstanding stouk options = 3
Anti Dilutive potential contingent consideration - )
Weighted average number of shares fis computation of Diluted EPS 2,532,090 2,32,09%)

Annual accounts 2022-23



Accompanying notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(Amuunt in INK Lacs)
MNote 28 - Contingent labilifies and commitments (1o the extent not provided for)

{A) Contingent liabilities

There are no contingent liabilities as af

I} In respect of disputed Income-tax matters {Refer below nose i) - -
Y In respect of disputed Goods & Service Tax Matters - 11.42

(B) Commitments

I} Estimated amount of conracts remaining to be executed on capital account and

Property, plamt and equipnnent 5 .
b} Intangible Assas

Intangible assais £ .

Note 29 - Leases:
Dim]usmmnrmiedmﬂwmﬂhﬂ L1é - Leasss

1) On adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company has recognized lease liabilities for all leases which were previously
clussified ag operating leases inder carfier GAAP. Ind AS 116 does not provide classification of leases inig
operating and finance lease for the lessee Bocounting. The lease lisbility is measured ot present value af the lease
payments discounted at incremental borrowing rate,

Lease liabilities is disclosed under the "Other financial liabiliies"

Particulars
Imterest expense on lease liabiligy 63 94 579
Total 69.94 579

b) The Company has recognised Right of Use (ROU) assen corresponding to the lease linhilities as per the
Tequirements of Ind AS 116. The ROU assess are amartized at S8LM bosis over the fease term. Reconciliation of
Carrying amount of Right of use aeset for a lessee as per IND AS 116 -

Farticstars Type of Right to Use Assers nount im INR Ly
Building Equipments Vehicles

As at 15t April 2022 54,58 = i 54.58

(+) Recognition of Right of use agset during 1l 1,462,552 LTI &4 08 1,50 65

(=) Derecognition of Right of use asset during & - . - -

{-) Amortisation of Right of use asset 9483 2295 447 122,25

As at 31 March 2023 1,422.28 67.10 39,60 1,528.94




Particulirs Type of Ripht to Use Asgety

Building
As at |5t April 2021 40,24
{*) Recommition of Right of use assst during the I7.70
(-) Derecogaition of Right of use asset during -
i-) Amortisation of Right of use gsest 12.38
As at 31 Mareh 2012 24.58

MNote 30 - Corporate social responsibility ('CSR’) expenses:

Equipments Vehicles

=] - 924
5 r I7.70
- . 12,36
- - 54.58

Provizione of $ection 135 al the Act are not applicable to the Company,

Note 31 - Segmeat reporting:

Note 32 - Related party disclosures::

(a) Related party disclosures a5 Tequired by Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures.

List of related parties and relutionships:

Sr. No. Nature of relationship

| Controlling Entity
Miyogin Fintech Limited

2 Key management personne]
Debiprasad Sarang
Amit Tyagi
Tashwinder Harjap Singh
Amit Vijay Rajpai
Subhasri Sriram
Abhishek Thakkar

Transactions with related parties are &5 fillows:

Mature of Relationship

Holding Company

MNature of Relationship

Directar w.e.f- 27082016

Director w.e 15072009

Non Executive Direcior w.s [ 13701202
Non Executive Director w.e.f 13002021
Independent Director-w.e f- 28072031
Additional Director-w.e - 140272023

A oag 31 A Al Jisi
March Ji23 March 20232
Holding Key
Company nEmagemeni
personnel
43,60
37162
20070

20,70



Commission income
FLDVG Charpes
Remunaration
Debiprasad Sarang
Amit Tyagi

Balances outstanding from relaped parties are as follows:

Revenue Recongized

FLIMG Charges

Remuneration payable

Drirector Remuneration
Debiprasad Sarang|
Amit Tyagi

Loan From [Mreciors
Debipeasad Sarangi

Note 32 - Related party digselosures (Comtinmed):

As st 315t March 2022

Holding Key
Company management
personmne)
3394
13.37
12,76
12.76

As at 315t March 2023

Holding Key
Company management
persannel
73,78
384,00
4.0
.00
200
7.00

(a) Related party disclosures as required by Ind AS 24 - Related Party Dusclosures, {Comtinued)

Balances ausstanding from related partics are as follows: (Conrimed)

Loan From Directors
Debiprasad Sarangi

Luan From Directors
Debiprasad Sarangi

As at March 2023
Key management personne)

7.00
As atl Mareh 2022
Key managsment persone|

T.00

All transactions with these related paries are priced on an arm's length basis. Noae of the batances is secured.




(b Disclosures as per Regulation S3(0) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and

Loans and advances in the nature of Joans 1 companies in which directors are interested as under

Sr. No. Name balance out- balance out-
standing for year standing during
Asat3lst  ended March3l, Asat3lst  the year ended
March, 2023 2023 March, 2022 31 Mapch 2022
I Debiprasad Sarangi 7.0 7.00 7.00 7.00

Note 33 - Dues of Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises :
Based on and 1o the extent of the information recelved by the Company from the suppliers during the year
regarding their stanes wnder the Micro, Small and Mediam Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {'MEMED Acr),
the total outstanding dues of Micro and Small enterprises, which arc outstanding for more than the stipulated
period and other discloseres as per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are given

As Atended Az At ended
Alst March 351 March

2023 20
Principal amoun payable to suppliers as at vear-end - -
Invierest due thereon as it ¥edr end - -
Imierest amount for delayed payments 1o supplicrs pussuant to provisions of - -
MSMED Agi nctusally pald during the ear, imespective of the vear o which the
Imterest relafas

Amount af delayed Payment actieally made io suppliers during the vear - -
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment > .
{(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but withou

acdding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the yesr . -
The emount of further interast remaining due and payable even in the succeeding - -
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid 10 the

small enterprises for the purpose of disallowance as a deduciible expenditure

under the MSMED Act. 2006,




Iserven Techmology Private Limited

Accompanying notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3151
Note 34 - Employee benefit plan :
Disclosuire in respect of employee beneflis under Ind AS [9- Employes Benefit are 45 under:
{2} Defined contribution plan
The Company's contribution i provident fund and employee stre insurance scheme are considered as defined

1311 lakhs) has been recognised in the statement of profit and loss under the head employee benefits expense. The
Company bas contributed an amount of ¥ 013 lakhs as contribution o employee state insurance scheme which has
been recogiised In the statement of profit and loss under emplovee benefit expenses.

(k) Defined benefit plan:
Gratuity

Financial assets not measured at fair vajua

The defined benefit plans expose the Company 1o risks such as actuarial risk, liquidity risk, market risk legislative
risk. These are discussed ac follows:

Actuarial risk: It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expecied. This can arise due to ane of the following
FERSOMmS.

Adverse salary growth cxperience: Sulary hikes that are higher than the sssumed salary escalation will result intg
an increase in obligation aia rate that i higher than ex .

Variability in morality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than sssumed montality mte assumption than the
gratuity benefits will be paid earfier than expected. Since there is no condition of vesting on the death bemefit, the
acceleration of cash flow will lead to an wetunrial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed
salary growth and discount rate,

Variability [n withdrawal rates; If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption then
the gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are
vested as at the resizgnation dare,

Liguidity risk: Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, ar.:j:umu]ate significant
level of benefits. If some of such emplayees resign / retire from the Company, there can be strain on the cash flows,

Market risk: Markot risk is a collective term for risks that are rélated to the changes iﬂd_ﬂl.im'l.lﬂﬂi}mi of the financial
markets. One actuarial assumption that has & material effect is the discount rate, Th-.f d::..nnum rate Tﬂ:t::_r. I:_::EILI::
valuc of money, An increase in discoun rate leads 1o decrease in defined benefit ohligation of the plan : E;hﬂi[}- ”
viee versa, This assumption depeids on the yields on the government bonds and hence the valuation o

expossd o Auciuntions in the yiclds &s al the valuation date,

Annual Accounis 2022-23
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Legislative risk: Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan labilities or reduction in the plan assets due to
change in the legislation/regulation, The gavemment may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, thus requiring
the companies to pay higher benefits 1o the employees. This will directly affect the present value of the defined
benefit obligation and the same will have to be recognized immediately in the vear when any such amendment is
effective,

The status of gratuity plan as required under Ind AS-19 is as under:

[Ampavirnd in facx)
As af 3t Az at 31st
Moarch, Murvh,
m3 2022

([} Reconclilation of opening and closing balances of defined henefit obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligations at the beginning of the year 9408 3.69
Current service cost 10,18 420
Past service cost - =
Interes| eost .70 0.25
Acquisition adjustiment s -
Remeasurement due 1o
Acturial Ioss/(gain) arising from change in financial assumption (1.31) {0.34)
Acturial loss{guin) arising from change in demographic assumption - &
Acturial loss/{gain) arising on account of experience changes 10.33 216
Benefit paid - -
Re-measurement {or Actuarial) {gain)/ loss arising from:
Change in demographic assumplions - -
Change in financial ESSUmMptions - -
Experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions) . -
Present value of defined bansfit obligations at the end of the vear 20.87 998
(ii) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of pl - -

Fni:wln:urpianusﬂsmlheeﬂufm:mr . -

(iii) Reconcilintion of the present villue of defined benefit obliention and fair value of plan azsets

Present value of defined benefit abligations at the end of the year 20.87 398
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year . :
Unrecognised past service cost . -

Net asser |/ (liability) recognized in the balance sheet as at the end of the : 29.87) (9.98)

Annieal Accounts 2022-23
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Note 34 - Employee benefit plan :

(d) Defined benefit plan: (Continned)

Gratuity (Continued)
{Ammteni in fuex)
Agat 3l s Az at 2
Marech, March,
2023 ¥
{iv) Expense recognised during the Year
Current service cost 1,18 4.20
Interest coat 0,70 025
Past service cost - -
Expenses recognised in the stalement af profit and 10.88 4,46
I
{v) Other comprehensive income
Opening amount recognised in OCI outside profit & 1.83 -
Components of actuarlal gain/losses on obligations:
Due to change in financial assumptions (1.31) (0.34)
Duec to change in demogranhic assumption - -
Due to experience adjustmenis - *
Return on plan aasets excluding amounts included In interest income 10.33 216
Components of defined benefit 20585 recognised in other 10,84 1.53
(i) Principal actuarial Essumptions
Discount rate (per anmnum) T.45% 7.10%%
Annual increase in salory cost 7.00% T.00%
Withdrawal rates per anmum
21 to 30 15.00%, 15.00%
A1 10 34 10.00% IO
3544 .00 5,00%
45 0 50 3.00% 3.00%
51 to 54 2.00% 2.00P4
5o 57 1.00% 105G

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of Irndin’s bond as at the halance sheat

date for the estimated term of the obligationz,

Annual Accounts 2022-23
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(vil) Sensitivity anafysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of fhe defined benefit obligation are diseount rate and
expected salary increase . The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible
changas of the assumptions occurring st the end of the reporting period. whils holding all other assumptions
constant, The results of seasitivity analysis is given below:

FAmrownt in fes)
As at 31st March, 2023 As 3t 31st March, 2022
Increpss Detrease  Imerpase Decreass
Discount rate (- / + 0.5%) 7.95% 6.93% 7.60% &.60%
(% change compared to base due 1o sensitivity -5.79% 6.37%  -11.92% 14.57%
Salary growth eate - / + 0,5%) 7.50% 6.30%  7.50% 6.50%
(% change compared to base due i sensitivity) 6.22% -5.84%  14.43% -12.03%
viii. Effect of plan on the Company's fidure cash flows
&) Maturity profile of defined benefi obligation
The weighted average duratien to the payment of these cash flows is 12.14 years,
Cash flows (%) Distribution (%)
Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undisco
15t Following Year L5 L.5T%
2nd Following year 1.7l 1.78%
Jrd Following Year 208 21 M%
dih Following Year 2,68 2.79%
Sth Following Year 276 287%
tth Following ¥ear 237 24655,
Tth Fallowing Year 118 227%
8th Following Year 2.21 2,300
9th Following Year 181 1.88%
Sum of years 10 and above 76.81 79.93%

Annusl Acesunbs 202223
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Accompanying notes to the financial statements for the period Ended 315t March

A b daes)
Note 35 - Classification of financial assets and financial linhilities :
Total
Manduatorily Amortised Earrying
As at 31 March 2023 at FY'TPL At easi cosi Amount
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents - - TOL8T TOTET
Bank balance other than cash and cash eqquivalents - . . .
Loans and advances 1o parties - - 427,66 427.66
Investment securitics 2 5 3 =
Mensured at fair value = a 4 .
Measured at cost - . = e
Measured et amortised cost - - 2.577.84 2.577.84
Other receivables - - 314548 314548
Other financial assets - - 255,98 255,08
Total Financial assets . - 111483 7.114.83
LIABILITIES
Trade Payahles - - 2.685.07 268507
Other financigl liabilities - - 261531 261531
Total Financial liabilities - - 5.300.40 5.300.40
Tatal
Mandatorily Amarfised CArTYing
As ut 31 March 2022 il FYTPL Al cost ool Aot
Cazh and cosh equivalents - - 1,276.08 I, 276,08
Bank balunce other than cash and cash equivalents - - - -
Loans and advances 10 parties . - 17998 17998
Investment securities 5 = 3 o)
Measured at fair value - 2 . L
Measured at cost - i - -
Measured ot amortised cost - - 5,043,12 504312
Other receivables - - 3.204.91 3,204.9]
Other financial assets - - Bl 36 66l 36
Total Finencial nzsets - - 10, 364,46 10.364.46
Trade les - - 1,186.15 1.186.15
Cither :E:Einl lizhilites - - 3.876.82 1876.42

Total Financial liabilites - = 506298 506298

Annual Accounds 2022-23
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Accompanying notes to the Financial Statements for the period Ended on 31st March 2023
Note 36 - Fair Value Measurements :

Financial Instrument by Category

(Amour in lacs)
As af 3 st March, 2023 As ar 3lst March, 2022
FVTPL Amdirtised Cost FYTPL Cogr
Finapcial Asset
Invesiments
- Equity Instraments = . - a
- Preference shares K - 5 o
« Bonds and Debentures - - - -
- Mutual Funds - . - -
Other Receivables - 257184 # 504312
Loans - 427 66 - 172,98
Cash And Cash Equivalems " 707.87 - ,276.08
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents - - . -
Utiver Receivables - 304548 - 3,204.91
(Trade Receivables & Advance Recoverabls in Cash or ko bng )
Other Financial Assets . 25598 - bl 36
- T.114.83 - 10,364.44
—— e
Financial Liability . ¥
Trade Payables . 2,685.07 - 1,186.15
Other Financial Liabilities - 2615.31 - 3.876.82
. 3.300.39 - 506294

Eair yalue Higrarchy

This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair value of the Nnancial instrument
that are (a) recognized and measured &t fair valye and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are
disclosed in the financial statements. Te provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining

fair value, the Company has classified its fnanclal instruments into three levels preseribed under the accounting
standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath tahle

Annual Accounds 2022-23



IServel Technology Private Limited

As ut 31 March 2023

Carrying Fair value measurements using

arfount Level | Level 2 Lewvel 3 'T'l:lt:-.ll1
LFDw.:ial Agzap;e
Investmernis
- Bonds and Debentures = -
= Mifual Funds = ;
Loans and advances 427.66 427.66 437 686
Oiher Roceivables 257784
Cash And Cash 0787
Bank balance other than -
cash and cash equivalents
Security Depaocits i
Erher Financial asacts 5.401.46
Total Financial Assat T,114.83 . 427 86 - 427.66
Financial [ inbilitias*
Trade Payables 2,685.07
Lease Liability [33l.22 1.531.22 1,531.22
Other Finencial Linhility 1,084.10
Total Financial Liahilities 50030 . 1.531.2 - 1,531,322

— h—=t_=_ S _—

Az at 31 Mareh 2022

Carryving Fair value measurements using

amatmt TLeval | Level 2 Lewvel 3 Totz]
Firmancial assets*
Invesiments
- Bonds and Debentures 5 =
= Mutnal Funds o ¥
Loans and advances 176,08 179,98 17998
Other Receivables 54312
Cash And Cash 1,276.08
Bank balance other than -
cish and cash equivalents
Security Deposits =

Unher Financial gsseis

Annuial Aecounts 202223




[ServeU Technology Private Limited

Total Financial Assat 10,364 44 =] 179598 - 179,98

Financial Linbilities®

Trade Payabies I,186.15

Lease Liability 52,31 52.31 5131

Other Financial Liability 3.824.50

Towal Financial Lisbilities 5,062.97 - 52.31 - 52.3_]_
E

*The Company has not disclosed the fair values for cash and cash equivalents, kank balances, bank deposits,
Enir Vajue Mensurement

Level 1 : Level | hierarchy includes flaancial Insirenents medsured using unadjusted quoted prices in active
miarkets that the Company has the ability te access for the identical assels or liabilities. A financial instrument is
classified as a Level measurement il it is [isted on an exchange. None of the Financial Instruments of the company
is Classifible as Level 1 Assets or Liability.

Level 2 : The fair value of financial insiruments that are nat traded in active markets is determinad sing valustion
techniquoe which masximine the use of observable market data either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for
similar nssets and liabilities in active markets, for substantially the fill term of the financial instrument but do net
qualify as Level | inputs. Fair value of loans and advances of the Company is measured using the last month's
lending rave. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are abservable the instrurent Is included in
level 2,

Level 3: If one or mare of the significant inputs is not based in ohservable market data, the Insruments is included
inlevel 3,

Financial instruments valyed at carrying value

The respective camying values of certain on-balance sheet financial instruments spproximated their fair value,
These financial instruments include cash in hand, belances with Banks, financial institutions and money at call and
short notice, accrued interest receivable, acceptances, depasits payable on demand, accrued inferest payahle, and
certain other assets and linbilities that are considered financial instruments, Carrying values were assumed 1o be
approximate fair values for these financia| instruments as they are shori-term in nature and their recorded amounts
approximate fair values or are receivabie or payable on demand.

Annual Accounts 2022-23
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Izerven Technology Private Limiiod

Accompanying notes to the Unanical statements for the perind Ended 315t Mareh 2023

enterprises. The manspement s however, of the view that there will be ng material adiustments which will
Impact profit/loes sccounts, (Mefir Note N, §)

(D) The Company is in the process of Implementing polley for Expected Credit Loss. The Company has
provided provision for receivables fr amount of Rs. 2.73,51,527 during the year,

Note 43 - Trade Payubles

The Management has taken up the matier of reconcilation and settlement of amount whichever not being
ceafirmed by the suppliers andfor service providers. However, because of the volume of suppliers and/or
service providers, 1 is not practicaily possible to abtain 100% confirmation of batances from all the creditors,

impact profivines nocounts, (Refer Note No. 18 (1))

Note 44 - Advances to Partjes

The Management has taken up the matier of reconcilation and sstilement of amount whichever not being
confimned by the respectives parties . During the yesr of audit, efforts are mode fo obigin balance
confirmations of amount material 1o the financial statements, The menagement is however, of the view that
theare will be no material adjustmends which will Impact profitloss aczolmts (Redier Note No, 13),

Naote 46 - Liabilities towards shannel purtners
The Management has taken up the matter of reconcilation of amoun whichever not being confirmed by ihe

channe| partners. However, becaise of the velume of channe) partners, it is not practically possible 1o ohiin

obtan balance confirmations of wnount material to the {mancial statements. The mignagement is however, of
the view that there will be no materal adjustments which had impact profitloss aceounts. | Refer Not= Na,
18by.

Nute 47 - Advances rocoverable in cash or kind 8 :
Balances. of advances recoversbie in cash or kind represents the control aceounts with transaction banks

I i i f The mpragement is
which ure pending for consequential adjustments arising from reconciliatian, I any. nage
however, of the view that there will be no materidl sdjusiments in this regard end will be recomeiled in the dug
courss, (Refer Nate Mo, 137,

Annual Accounts 2022-23




Iserven Technology Private Limited
Note 48 - Goods and Service tax

ia) The Company is in the process of filling of Annusl Return of Goods and Service Tax for Financial Year
2020-21 & 2021-22,

(0] Figures of GST receivable/pavahle are subject 10 reconeiliation with the G3T portat,

Note 4% « Prior perind eNpenses

During the year the Company has identified the errars in booking of expenses of the earlier years and as
msessed by the manngement, TElFOSEPCTivE restalement 5 not practicsble for o particubar prior

Anmual Accounts 2022-23
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Accompanying notes to the finamical statements for the period ended 315t March, 2023

Note 50 - Ratios:

{(a) Current Ratio ;
Current assels
Current linbilities
Current Ratio
%o change from previous vear

Current assets inchude invéntorics, current
halancas other than cash and cash equivalent

Current labilities include borrowings,
provisions and other current Jiahilitias.

Reason for change more than 25%: Due (o

assels valus hag decressed,

{b) Debt Equity Ratio :
Nen-current borrowings

Currenl maturities of long-term borrowings

Overdraft! working capital
Total debn

Total equity

Debt Equity Ratio

% change from previeus year

(2} Deht service coverage ratio :

Profit! (Joss) before exceptional items and tax
Add: Depreciation and amortisation expense

Interest on long term loans
Interest on lease liabilities

Eamings available for debt services

Repayments made during the vear/ period

Interest paid on long term loans
Interest paid on lease liabilities

Principal repayment for long term loans
Principal repayment for lease liabilitics
Total interest omd principal repayments

Debt service coverage ratio
% change from previous year

fAmvsconat by )

Year ended Year ended

315t March, 31st March,
2023 2azz

7.827.64 10,721,010

145,04 520794

.27 206

(0.38) {ng

Investments, trade recelvables, cash and cach equivalents, bank
5. other financial assets and other curren aszels,

kease liability. trade puyables, other financial ltabilities, current

decrease In investmeants in current financial yvear, the current

1042 &0 661,10
1,042,560 1.66G1.10
3.543.13 82775
0.29 0.29
.03 69,13
(2. 166.76) 2871
165.85 66.35
hY.94 579
{1,930.911 104085
51;?94 574
154.70 3839
224.04 44.08
(8.60) 2.19
-AT6% ~46%

Reason for change more than 15%: Due to reporting of Joss in current financial vear debr service

conerigee Fabio is ndversely impacted.

Annual Accounts 2022-22




IServell Technology Private Limited

Avcompanying notes to the finanical statements for the period ended 315t March, 2023

(A vt b faey)

Year ended Year ended

st March, 31st March,

2023 ez
(d) Return on Equity ;

Profit/{less) for the periog: {2215.18) [8.80
Total eguity 3,543.13 382775
Returm on eguity {0.63) 000
* change from previous vear =19421% ~B5%

Reason for change more than 25%. Due w reporting of loss in current financial vear debt serice
coverage ratio is adversely impacted,

(e} Inventory turmover ratio :

Sale of goods B36.46 3.196.66
Opening inventories of finished gowods 191.81 91.82
Closing inventories of finished poods 51829 191.81
Avernge inventories of finished goods 35505 [41.81
lvemory turnover ratio a4 22.54
* change from previous year -foeg 2794
Reason for change more than 259 Decrease in Inveniory tumover ratio it due to lesser mumber of
device dispatches to AP partncrs in current financial yvear as compared to previous financial vear.
() Trade receivable turnover ratio §

Revenue from operations 8.068.52 TBE2 .08
Opening gross trade receivahlas 265913 03,78
Closing gross trade recoivablas 228014 2.659.13
Average gross trade receivables 2,469.64 168146

Trade receivables tarnover ratio ke 4.69
% change from previous vear -30%% -25%
Trade receivables collection period 111,72 T7.86
% change from previous year £3% 34%

Reason for change more thun 25%: Decrease in trade receivable tumover ratip is duc to lesser number of
device dispatches to API partners and collections to be received from them s on 31 Mar 2023,

Annual Accounts 2022-23



IServel Technology Private Limited

Aceompanying notes to the finanical statements for the perfod ended 31st March, 2023

Fdbrvariires iny docs)

Year ended Yenr endexd

315t March, S1at March;

202N 2022
(g) Trade payables turnover ratio :

Total eredit purchases 9,070,72 B, 584,40
Opening trade payables 27343 B394
Closing trade payables 508.41 27343
Average trade payables 300.92 178.69
Trade payables turnover ratio 21.20 IB.53
% change from previous year -4 -AT%

Reason for change more shan 25%: Decrease in trade payable temover ratio is dup 1o ncrepss [
expenses {operating and non aperating) during the financial vear 2021-22.

Reason for change more than 25%: Decrease in trade payable turnover satio i5 due to increase in
expenses (operating and non operating) during the financial yoaF 202223

{h) Net eapital turnover ratio -

Revenue from operations B.0GR.52 T.8R2 08
Current assels 7.827.54 10,721.01
Current lighilities &, 145.04 3.207.54
Waorking capital | 682,50 331307
Adjusted working capital L.&E2 40 5.513.07
Net capitl wrmover ratio 4_80 .43
"o change from previous year 235% =26%

Reason for change more than 25%: Current Assets value has decreased in current fnancisl vesr, duie to
decrease in investments in current financial year.

(1) Net profit ratio :
Profit / {Loss) for the year (2,166,763 2871
Revenoe from operations B 06852 T.RELO0E
Net Profit ratio =26.85% 0.36%
%o change from previous year -T473% -T1%4

Rewson for change more than 25%: The Company is focussing on incressing the customer base and
devlaping infrastructure of the core business arcas. As & result of the same net profit hes decreased in fhe

financial year 2021-22.

adversely impacted,
Annual Accounds 2022-23




IServell Technalogy Private Limited

Accompanying notes 1o the finanical statements for the period ended 3]st March, 1023

{Amount in facy)
Year ended Year ended
3ist Mareh, Hst March,
W23 2022
()} Return on Capital Emploved :
Profit’ (loss) after tax (2,215,18) 18.86
Add: Tax expenscafcradit) 48.42 9.85
I'mance cosis 185.54 4715
S - e —_———
Eamings before interest and tax (1.981.21 ! 73,86
Equity 3,543.13 5.827.75%
Long term: deb = .
Capital emploved 3.543.13 S B27.95
Pre-iax return on capital employed -55.92% 1.30%
% change from previous year -4 356% -B0%

Reason for change more than 25%: Due to reporting of loss in current financial Year net profit ratio is
adversely impacied.

Anneal Accounts 2022-23



Iserven Technology Private Limited
Accompanying motes to the finanical statements for the period Ended 31st March 2023
Note 51 - During the year the Compnay has not done any transaction with Struck off Compnaies

Note3SI - The previcus vear's figures have been re-grouped/re-classified wherever required 1o
conform to current year's classification
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